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Dear Sirs / Madams,
1. This report is issued in accordance with the terms of our agreement dated 02.01.2025,

2. We have examined the attached Restated Financial Information, expressed in Indian Rupees in
millions of Sillverton Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company” or the
“Issuer™), comprising

a. the “Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities” as at December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024,
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 (enclosed as Annexure I);

b. the “Restated Statement of Profit and Loss” for years/period ended December 31, 2024,
March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 (enclosed as Annexure II);

C. the “Restated Statement of Changes in Equity” for the years/period ended December 31,
2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 (enclosed as Annexure III);

d. the “Restated Statement of Cash Flows" for the years/period ended December 31, 2024,
March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 (enclosed as Annexure 1V);

e. the Restated Statement of “Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting Policies and Notes to
the Restated Financial Information” for the years/period ended December 31, 2024, March
31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 (enclosed as Annexure V); and

f. the “Statement of Adjustments to the Audited Special Purpose Financial Statements as at
and for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 (enclosed as Annexure VI)

(hereinafter together referred to as the “Restated Financial Information™), prepared by the
Management of the Company in connection with the Proposed Initial Public Offering of Equity
Shares of the Company (the “IPO” or “Issue”) in accordance with the requirements of:

a. Section 26 of Part I of Chapter III of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act");

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (the "ICDR Regulations"); _
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c. The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"), as amended from time to time
(the “"Guidance Note”).

The said Restated Financial Information has been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on 14.06.2025 for the purpose of inclusion in the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus ("DRHP"), Red Hearing Prospectus ("RHP) and Prospectus (collectively,
“Offer Documents”) in related to proposed IPO, and initialed by us for identification purposes
only.

Management’s Responsibility for the Restated Financial Information

3. The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation of the Restated Financial
Information which have been approved by the Board of Directors for the purpose of inclusion
in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus ("DRHP”), Red Hearing Prospectus (“"RHP) and
Prospectus (collectively, “"Offer Documents”) to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India ("SEBI"”), BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(collectively, the "Stock Exchanges”) in connection with the proposed initial public offer. The
Restated Financial Information have been prepared by the management of the Company on
the basis of preparation stated in note 2(I) to the Restated Financial Information. The
respective board of directors of the companies are responsible for designing, implementing
and maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of
respective restated financial information which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of these Restated Financial Information by the management of the Company, as aforesaid.
The respective board of directors are also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the
company complies with the Act, the ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities

4. Our work has been carried out considering the concepts of test checks and materiality to
obtain reasonable assurance based on verification of evidence supporting the Restated
Financial Information in accordance with the Guidance Note and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the ICAI and pursuant to the requirements of Section 26 of the
Act, and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting
your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with the Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations
and the Guidance Note in connection with the Issue.

5. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI.

6. Our examination of the Restated Financial Information has not been carried out in accordance
with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and accordingly, should not be relied upon
by any one as if it had been carried out in accordance with those standards or any other
standards besides the standards referred to in this report.

7. The Restated Financial Information, expressed in Indian Rupees in million, has been prepared
by the Company’s Management from:

a. the audited special purpose Ind AS financial statements of the Company as at and for the
year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, prepared in accordance
with the Ind AS as prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and under other accountlng prmmples
generally accepted in India and were approved by the Board of Directors at theies
held on 10.06.2025.




b. the audited Interim special purpose Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
nine months period ended December 31,2024 which were prepared in accordance with
recognition as measurement principles of the Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as
“Ind AS™) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting™ specify under Section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, which have been approved by the Board of Directors
at their meetings held on 12.06.2025.

8. For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on

a. Auditors’ reports issued by us, dated 10.06.2025 on the audited special purpose financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March
31, 2022, as referred in Paragraph 7(a) above.

b. Auditors’ reports issued by us, dated 12.06.2025 on the audited Interim special purpose Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the nine months ended December 31, 2024, as
referred in Paragraph 7(b) above.

9. We have not aucited any financial statements of the Company as of any date or for any -
period subsequent to December 31, 2024. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion on
the financial position, results or cash flows of the Company as of any date or for any period
subsequent to December 31, 2024.

Opinion

10. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we report that the Restated Financial Information:

a. have been prepared in accordance with the Act, and the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the
Guidance Note;

b. have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting
policies, material errors and regrouping/reclassifications retrospectively (as disclosed in
Annexure VI to the Restated Financial Information) to reflect the same accounting
treatment as per the accounting policies and grouping/classifications followed as at and
for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, for all the reporting period; and

C. there are no qualifications in the auditors' reports on the audited financial statements of
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and
on the audited special purpose financial statements of the Company as at March 31, 2024
and audited special purpose financial statements for the nine months ended December
31,2024 which do not require any adjustments for modification as there is no
modification in the underlying audit report.

11. The Restated Financial Information do not reflect the effects of events that occurred
subsequent to the respective dates of the reports on the Audited Financial Statements and
Special Purpose Financial Statements mentioned in paragraph 8 above.

12. This report should not in any way be construed as a reissuance or re-dating of any of the
previous audit reports issued by us or the Previous Auditors, nor should this report be
construed as a new opinion on any of the financial statements referred to herein.

13. We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after
the date of the report.
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Restriction on Use

This report is addressed to and is provided to enable the Board of Directors of the Company
to include this report in the Offer Documents prepared in connection with the proposed
Initial Public Offering of Equity Shares of the Company, to be filed by the Company with the
SEBI, BSE and NSE, in connection with the proposed IPO. Our report should not be used,
referred to, or distributed for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come without our prior consent in writing.

For AGARWAL AJAY & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005159C

/

AJAY KR. AGARWAL

PARTNER
M.No. 073934

PLACE: MUZAFFARNAGAR
DATED: 14.06.2025
UDIN: 25073934BMOORR2084




SILLVERTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED -
(Formerly Known as Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)

CIN: U21093UP1995PL.C018048
All amounts are ¥ in millions unless otherwise stated

Annexure V - Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting Policies and Notes to the
Restated Financial Information

1. Corporate Overview:

Sillverton Industries Limited, Muzaffarnagar is a Limited Company which was formerly
incorporated on 15.05.1995 in the name of Silverton Pulp and Papers Limited having CIN-
U21093UP1995PLC018048 and later on was converted into Silverton Pulp and Papers Private
Limited. The Company is engaged in manufacture of Kraft Paper, Writing and Printing Paper,
Cup Stock and Packaged Drinking Water.

The Company is having its registered office at 9th K.M Bhopa Road, Muzaffarnagar, Uttar
Pradesh, India-251001.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by our Board of Directors at its meeting held on [March 6,
2025] and a special resolution passed by our Shareholders at the EGM held on March 28,
2025, the name of Company was changed to 'Sillverton Industries Private Limited’, and a
fresh certificate of incorporation dated April 22, 2025, was issued by the RoC. Subsequently,
the Company was converted from a private limited company to a public company, consequent
to which, the name of Company was changed to ‘Sillverton Industries Limited’.

2. Basis of preparation, material accounting policies:

(a) Statement of Compliance

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Basis of Preparation

These restated financial statements comprise of the Restated Statement of Assets and
Liabilities as at December 31,2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the
Restated Statements of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Restated
Statements of Changes in Equity and the Restated Statements of Cash Flows for the period
ended December 31,2024 and for the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, and
March 31, 2022 and the Summary of Material accounting policies and other explanatory notes
(collectively, the ‘Restated Financial Information’).

These Restated Financial Information have been prepared by the Management of the Company
for the purpose of inclusion in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (‘DRHP’), Red Herring
Prospectus (‘RHP’) and Prospectus (collectively, “Offer Documents”) to be filed by the
Company with the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI), BSE Limited (BSE) and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), as applicable in connection with proposed Initial Public
Offering (“IPQ”) of its equity shares.

These Restated Financial Information have been approved by the Board
prepared by the management of the Company to
requirements of:




i Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

ii. Paragraph A of Clause 11 (I) of Part A of Schedule VI of the Securities _and Exchange
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as
amended to date (the “"SEBI ICDR Regulations”) issued by the SEBI; and

iii. The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issm_Jed by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), as amended from time to
time (the “"Guidance Note”).

The Company has decided to adopt Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended from time to time and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
(referred to as “Ind AS”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and prepared its first
financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) for the year
ended March 31, 2024 with the transition date as April 01, 2021.

An explanation of how the transition from accounting standard notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (as
amended) (“"Previous GAAP”) to Ind AS has affected the Company’'s Restated Financial
Information is set out in Note 45.

The Restated Financial Information has been prepared by the Management of the Company
from:

(a2) The audited Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements of the company as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023, 31 March 2022 prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, which have been approved by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 10.06.2025.

(b) The audited Interim Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements of the company as at and
for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2024, prepared in accordance with the basis of
preparation and have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held
12.06.2025

The Restated Financial Information:

(a) have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting policies,
material errors, if any, and regrouping/reclassifications retrospectively (as disclosed in
Annexure VI to the Restated Financial Information) to reflect the same accounting treatment
as per the accounting policies and grouping/classifications followed as at end for the period
ended 31 December 2024.: and

(b) do not require any adjustment for qualifications as there are no qualifications in the
underlying auditors’ reports.

The audited Special Purpose Ind AS Financial statements referred above have been prepared
solely for the purpose of preparation of Restated Financial Information for inclusion in the Offer
Documents in relation to proposed IPO. Hence these Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
statements are not suitable for any other purpose other than for the purpose of preparation of
Restated Financial Information.

unless stated otherwise.




Historical Cost Convention

This restated financial information have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
following:

+ Defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value.

+ Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on
financial instruments)

The Restated Financial Information have been prepared on a going concern basis.

New standards or interpretations adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amended certain
accounting standards, and are effective April 01, 2023

- Disclosure of accounting policies- amendments to Ind AS 1

- Definition of accounting estimates - amendments to Ind AS 8

- Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction - amendments
to Ind AS 12

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of
clarifications.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically,
no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the
company's accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

(c) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013. Based on the nature of product & activities of the Company and their realization in cash
and cash equivalent, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2 USE OF ESTIMATES & JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in
future periods. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.




SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following estimates, assumptions and judgements which have significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statement:

Income Taxes:

Judgment of the Management is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone
financial statements.

Contingencies:

Judgment of the Management is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if
any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Allowance for uncollacted accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management deems them not collectible. Impairment is made on ECL, which
are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.

Defined Benefit Plans:

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value
of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These
Includes the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and
attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PP&E):

On transition to Ind AS, the company has adopted optional exemption under Ind AS 101 to
measure Property, Plant and Equipment at Previous GAAP Carrying Value as deemed cost
under Ind AS. Subsequently Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.




SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
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Property, plant and equipment acquired after the transition date are stated at cost net of input
credit availed, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under construction /
development as at the balance sheet date. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances
under other non-current assets. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and
equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
these will flow to the Company and the costs to the item can be measured reliably. Repairs
and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when incurred.
Property, plant and equipment are derecognized from the financial statement, either on
disposal or when no economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Losses arising in
the case of retirement of property, plant and equipment and gain or losses arising from
disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the year of occurrence.

Depreciation on Buildings, Plant & Machinery and other assets of all units is provided as per
straight line method over their useful lives as prescribed under Schedule II of Companies Act,
2013. Depreciation on addition is charged proportionately from the date of its
acquisition/installation. Depreciation will be charged from the date the assets is available for
use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

(b)BORROWING COST:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(c) INVENTORIES:

Inventories such as Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods, Stock in Trade, Stores &
Spares are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (except scrap/waste which are
value at net realizable value). The cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished
Goods and Process Stock include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

(d)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and demand deposits with
banks with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

(e)FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, all financial
assets are measured at fair value. Such financial assets are subsequently classifi

following three categories according to the purpose for which they are held. The ¢}
is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.




(f) FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the coqtractual
provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair value,
in case of financial assets which are recognized at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
its transaction cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the
transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:

e amortized cost

* fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

» fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

(i) Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR")
method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if
any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Financial assets at Fair value through other comprehensive Income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments Of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOC'). Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains
and losses and impairment expenses in other expenses.

(iii) Financial assets at Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/(losses) in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income.

(iv) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the asset.

(v) Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition
other than financials assets in FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade
receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognizes 12 month expected credit losse

all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the fifiz
asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit |#s8¢




measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since its initial recognition. The Company’s trade receivables do not contain
significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an
amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses
and reversals are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(g) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost
unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of
trade payables, they are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are
held at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are at each reporting date with
all the changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (“EIR”). Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(iii) Compound Financial Instruments:

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognized initially at fair value
of a similar liability that does not have an equity component. The equity component is
recognized initially as the difference between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable
transaction costs are allocated to the liability and the equity components, if material, in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition except on conversion or expiry.

(iv) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.




(h) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or ’constructlvg)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of_ the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its
present value using @ current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made.

(i) REVENUE RECOGNITION:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria
described below also be met before revenue is recognized.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized, when control of goods being sold is transferred
to customer and where there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance
obligations in contracts are considered as fulfilled in accordance with the terms agreed with
the respective customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured on transaction price excluding estimates of
variable consideration that is allocated to performance obligations. Sales as disclosed, are
exclusive of Goods and Services Tax.

The company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to
determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods to a
customer, excluding amount collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes collected
on behalf of government). The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may
include fixed consideration, variable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.

The transaction price is allocated by the company to each performance obligation in an
amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised goods to the customer.

(ii) Export Incentives & Duty Drawback

Income from export incentives and duty drawbacks is recognized on accrual basis when no
significant uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and as to its
ultimate collection exists.




(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

(j) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
Defined contribution plan:

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour
welfare fund, employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount
of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.
Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a
government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has
no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan:

The Company'’s Liabilities on account of Gratuity and Earned Leave on retirement of employees
are determined at the end of each financial year on the basis of actuarial valuation certificates
obtained from Registered Actuary in accordance with the measurement procedure as per
Indian Accounting Standard IND AS-19, ‘Employee Benefits’. The costs of providing benefits
under these plans are also determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year end.
Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans are recognized through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

The Defined Benefit Plan can be short term or long term which are defined below:

* Short-term employee benefits

All employees’ benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are
recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service.

® Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

(k) LEASES:
Company as a Lessee

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the
leases are short term in nature or underlying assets under leases are of low value. The lease
payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(1) INCOME TAXES:
(i) Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected tg

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to ¢
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date




income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purpose at reporting date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the
period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.

A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilized.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(iii) Minimum alternate tax

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

(m) EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS):

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(n) CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

(0) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and certain investments, at
fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:




« In the principal market for the asset or liability.

« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Company. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

* Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that issignificant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

For AGARWAL AJAY & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 005159C
e

.

AJAY KR. AGARWAL

PARTNER
M.No. 073934

PLACE: MUZAFFARNAGAR
DATED: 14.06.2025
UDIN : 25073934BMOORR2084




SILLVERTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)
CIN: U21093UP1995PLC018048

All amounts are T in millions unless otherwise stated

Annexure VI: Statement of Adjustments to the Audited special purpose Financial Statements as at
and for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2024,
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Statements Summarized below are the restatement adjustments made to the Audited special
purpose Financial Statements as at and for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and
for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and their impact on
equity and the profit/loss of the Company:

Part A: Statement of Adjustments to the Audited Special Purpose Financial Statements and the
Restated Financial Information

Reconciliation of total equity as per the audited special purpose financial statements with total
equity as per Restated Financial Information:

Particular As at As at | As at As at
December March 31, | March 31, March 31,
31, 2024 2024 2023 2022

A. Total Equity as per the Audited Special 4138.67 3324.64 2442.25 1760.64

Purpose Financial Statements

B. Adjustments:

| Material restatement adjustments

i) Audit qualifications- - - i —

| ii) preference shares capital reclassification - (9.38) (9.38) (9.38)
iii) Adjustments due to prior period items/other - 4.40 (0.41) (3.23)
adjustment

(iv) Deferred tax impact on adjustments in (i) - B - =
and (ii), as applicable

(v)Change in accounting policies - -- - =

(vi) MAT Credit reclassify - (6.01) (6.01) (6.01)
Total impact of adjustments (i+ii+iii+iv+v+vi) - (10.99) (15.80) (18.62)
Total equity as per restated financial 4168.67 3313.65 2426.45 1742.02

_information (A+B)

Reconciliation of profit / (loss) as per the audited special purpose financial statements with profit
/ (loss) as per Restated Financial Information:

Particular For the For the | For the For the
nine year year year
months ended ended ended
period March 31, | March 31, March 31,
ended 2024 2023 2022
December
31, 2024

A. Profit/(loss) after tax as per the Audited 824.40 886.86 685.96 309.72

Special Purpose Financial Statements

B. Adjustments:

Material restatement adjustments

| i) Audit qualifications- - - i —

i) Adjustments due to prior period items/other -- (0.66)
adjustment




%) Deferred tax impact on adjustments in (i) - -- -- -
| and (ii), as applicable

| (iv)Change in accounting policies -- - - oo
| Total impact of adjustments (i+ii+iii+iv) - (0.66) (3.98) (5.45)
Restated profit/ (loss) after tax as per 824.40 886.20 681.98 304.27

Restated Financial Information (A+B)

Note to adjustment:
i) Refer note 45 for the notes on the IND AS Adoption.

ii) Audit qualifications - There are no audit qualifications in auditor's report for the financial years ended
March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

iii) Material regrouping/reclassification-there are no material regrouping/reclassification in the restated
financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

iv) Material errors - There were no material errors in Audited Special Purpose Financial Statements for the
nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022 requiring any adjustments in Restated Financial Information.

Part B: Non adjusting items.

a) Emphasis of Matters not requiring adjustments to Restated Financial Information are
reproduced below in respect of the Audited Special Purpose Financial Statements as at and for the
year ended March 31, 2024:

"We draw your attention to Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Financial Statements which describes the basis of
preparation of these Special Purpose Financial Statements in accordance with Appendix 5.1 of the Guidance
Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019), as the Company has voluntarily adopted the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 for the year ended March 31, 2024, with a transition
date of April 1, 2021. The Special Purpose Financial Statements are not the statutory financial statements of
the Company, and are not intended to, and do not, comply with the disclosure provisions applicable to
statutory financial statermments prepared under the Companies Act, 2013. The comparative financial
information has not been included as the same is not considered relevant for the intended purpose of
preparation of the Special Purpose Financial Statements as fully described in the aforesaid note. Further, the
consideration of events after the date of adoption of the statutory financial statements by the Board of
Directors of the Company is neither appropriate nor relevant for the preparation of these special purpose
financial statements. As a result, the Special Purpose Financial Statements may not be suitable for any
purpose other than that as mentioned in above paragraph.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter"

For AGARWAL AJAY & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005159(_C__

PLACE: MUZAFFARNAGAR
DATED: 14.06.2025

UDIN : 25073934BMOORR2084
AJAY KR. AGARWAL

PARTNER
M.No. 073934



M/s Sillverton Industries Limited
(Formerly Known as M/s Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)
CIN-U21093UP1995PLCO18048

Annexure | - Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities
{Amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note | As at December As at March 31,| As at March 31, As at March 31,
31,2024 2024 2023 2022
I. |ASSETS
(1){Non - current assets
(a) Property,plant and equipment 31 1,974.62 1,43532 1,533.00 1,625.57
(b) Capital Work In Progress 32 1,297.82 693.77 23424 -
(c) Investment Property 33 17.95 - -
(d) Financial assets
(1) Inyvestments 4 16.06 17.15 - -
(1) Other financial assets 5 in 305 305 771
(e) Other non - current assets 6 157 84 670.43 -
(2)|Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 1,179.96 1,217.13 86294 810.50
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 8 1,133.90 692 46 776.49 64503
(1) Cash and cash equ valents 9 3435 184 54 69.96 153.55
(1) Ba.n.k balances other than cash and cash 10 1.168.89 1.178.14 826 25 381.06
equivalents
(vi) Other financial assets 11 24 44 783 .68 2.06
(c) Other current assets 12 48371 32434 386.39 24690
7,492.65 6,424.16 4,694.00 3,872.38
Il JEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1)|Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 13 76.70 76.70 76.70 76.70
(b) Other equity 14 4,061.97 3,236.95 2,34975 1,66532
Liabilities
(2)|Non - current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 1,699 31 1,391 54 529.64 39373
(1) Other financial liabilities 16 55.81 5125 50.82 49 76
(b) Prowvision 17 25.88 22.30 17.45 14.41
{c) Deferred tax habilities (net) 18 276.88 201.59 109.75 3148
(d) Other non current liabilities 19 37.01 15.31 -
(3)|Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 20 239.32 470 57 434.09 1,024 95
(1) Trade payables 21
a)Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises 11.37 477 5.79 0.83
b)Total outstanding dues of creditors others
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 587.35 675.17 703.70 422 56
(i) Other financial liabilities 22 3850 0.09 15.34 0.06
(b) Other current liabilities 23 107.33 94 31 106,52 88.80
(¢) Provisions 24 275.22 18361 294 45 103.78
7,492.65 6,424.16 4,694.00 3,872.38

The above Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities should be read in conjunction with the Annexure V- Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting

Policies and Notes to the Restated Firancial Information and Annexure V1 -Statement of Adjustments to the Audited Financial Statements.
—
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M/s Sillverton Industries Limited

(Formerly Known as M/s Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)
CIN-U21093UP1995PLCO18048

Annexure I1- Restated Statement of Profit and Loss

(Amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

VL

VIL

vin

IX.

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income ( 1+11)

Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of Stock in Trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress and Stock
in Trade

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (IV)

Profit before tax ( 111-1V)

Tax expense :

Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit for the year/Period

Other comprehensive income

(i)  Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset

(1)) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year/Period

Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share Rs. 5/-)
- Basic and Diluted (Rs.)

Note For the nine For the yvear For the vear For the year
months period ended March | ended March |ended March 31,
ended December 31,2024 31,2023 2022
31,2024

25 7.451.56 8,795.85 8,659.98 6,186.54
26 72.94 105.03 69.26 21.25
7,524.50 8,900.88 8.729.24 6,207.79

27 5,355.66 6,453.23 6,496.34 4,901.17
28 86.04 08.29 89.01 247
29 (34.63) 42.50 (64.96) (10.55)
30 138.34 60.93 106.78 86.82
31 68.51 79.41 76.17 82.90
3 142.39 73.71 169.68 167.74
32 593 .88 83041 Bl16.63 486.81
6,350.19 7.848.48 7,689.65 5,717.36

1,174.31 1.052.40 1,039.59 490.43

13

272.33 27117 291.28 98.05

77.58 (104.97) 66.33 88.11

349.91 166.20 357.61 186.16

8§24.40 386.20 651,98 304.27

0.95 1.54 376 289
(0.33) (0.54) (1.31) (1.01)

0.62 1.00 2.45 1.88

§25.02 887.20 684.43 306.15

34

3.36 .61 2.78 1.24

I'he above Restated Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the Annexure V- Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting Policies and Notes to the
Restated Financial Information and Annexure VI -Statement of Adjustments to the Audited Financial Statements .
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M/s Sillverton Industries Limited

(Formerly Known as M/s Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)
CIN-U21093UP1995PLCO18048

Annexure I11 - Restated Statement of Change in Equity

(Amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity Share Capital

Amount in Million
Balance as at April 01, 2021 76.70
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at April 01, 2022 76.70
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 76.70
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 76.70
Changes in equity share capital duning the year -
|Balance as at December 31, 2024 76.70
(b) Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Items of Total
Other
Comprehensi
General Retained Earnings| Securities | MAT Credit Equity Other Re-
Reserve Premium | Entitlement [component of|] Reserves* |measurement
compound of defined
financial benefit plan
instrument-
(Preference
Balance as at April 01, 2021 - 1,035.92 246.85 - 74.13 245 (0.18) 1,359.17
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors = - - - - -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2021 - 1,035.92 246.85 - 74.13 145 (0.18) 1,359.17
Profit for the year - 304.27 - ™ - = - 30427
Income tax of earlier years - - - - - - =
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) = - - - - 1.88 1.88
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 304.27 - - - - 1.88 306.15
Transfer from retined eamings - - - - - - - s
Transfer to general reserve - - - - «
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 1,340.19 246.85 - 74.13 2.45 1.70 1,665.32
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - 1,340 19 246,85 - 74.13 245 1.70 1,665.32
Profit for the year . 68198 - - - - 681.98
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) - - - - 2.45 245
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 681,98 - - - 245 684.43
Transfer to general reserve - - - - - - = Z
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 2,022.17 246.85 - 74.13 2.45 4.15 2,.349.75
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - 2,022.17 246.85 - 7413 245 415 2,349.75
Profit for the year - 886.20 - - - Z " 88620
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) - - - - k 1.00 1.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 886.20 - - - - 1.00 887.20
Transfer to general reserve - - - - - - - =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 2,908.37 246.85 - 74.13 .45 5.15 3,236.95
Balance as at April 01, 2024 - 290837 246.85 - 7413 2.45 5.15 3,236.95
Profit for the year - 824 40 - - w . £24.40
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) * » - 0.62 0.62
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 814.40 - - - - 0.62 825.02
I'ransfer 1o general reserve - - - - - - - "
Balance as at December 31, 2024 - 3.732.77 246.85 - 74.13 2.45 5.77 4,061.97

*Other reserve is created on account of forfeiture of equity shares during FY 2013-14

The above Restated Statement of Change in Equity should be read in conjunction with the Annexure V-

Financial Information and Annexure V1 -Sialss
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M/s Sillverton Industries Limited

(Formerly Known as M/s Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)

© CIN-UZ1093UP199SPLCO18048

* Annevure IV - Restated Statement of Cash Flows
(Amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

For the nine months For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
period ended December March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars 31, 2024
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY :
Net Profit before Tax 1,174.31 1,052.40 1,039.59 490,43
Less: Interest Income (69.36) (76.60) (44.89) (9.47)
Add : (Profit)Loss Due to Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 11.97 (12.28) 35.04 037
Add: (Profit) / Loss on sale Investment (0.31)
Add: (Profit) / Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.41 - (0.94) 1.82
Add : Financial Cost 68.51 79 41 76.17 8290
Add : Depreciation on Fixed Assets 142.39 153.61 173.71 164.24 169.68 235.06 167.74 24336
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,327.92 1,216.64 1,274.65 733719
Adjustments for:
- (Increase)/Decrease in Inventones iz (354.19) (52.44) (173.96)
- (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (441 44) 84.03 (131.46) (47.56)
- (Increase )/ Decrease in other hank balance 925 (351.89) (445.19) (323.52)
- (Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets (16.67) (6.15) 5.04 (4.10)
- (Increase ) Decrease in Other current assets (159.38) 62.05 (139.49) (42.82)
- (Increase ) Decrease in other non current assets 51259 (670.43) - 148
- Increase/( Decrease) in Other financial habilities 4297 (14.82) 16.34 (24.63)
- Increase/( Decrease) in Trade Payables (81.22) (29.55) 286.10 4411
- Increase/( Decrease) in Other Non-Current Liabilities 21.70 15.31 - -
- Increase/( Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 13.02 (12.21) 17.72 29.56
(Increase )/ Decrease in Mat credit entitlement (2.63) 196,28 10.63 -
- Increase/( Decrease) in Provisions 548 742 7.15 531
Cash generated from operations (59.16) (1,074.15) (425.60) (536.12)
Income Tax paid (18166)] (24082)] (383.05)| (1,457.20)] (10095)| (526.55) (64.89)]  (601.01)
Net Cash flow from Operating activitics 1,087.10 (240.56) 748.10 132.78
(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
- Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (1,304.98) (535.57) (316.24) (94.22)
- Interest Income on FDR 69.36 76.60 44 89 947
- Profit on sale of Investment 0.31 - - -
- Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 0.89 - 583 6.45
- (Purchase)/'sale proceeds of Shares 1.09 (17.15) - B
Net Cash flow from Investing activities (1,233.33) (476.12) (265.52) (78.30)
(C )CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Payment of Interest (67.59) (78.28) (75.14) (81.95)
- ProfitLoss due to foreign fluctation (11.97) 12.28 (35.04) {0.37)
- Increase/(Decrease) in long term borrowings 306.85 860.78 134.87 (447.65)
- Increase/(Decrease) in short term dorrowings (231.25) (3.96) 36.48 831.26 (590 .86) (566.17) 580.70 5073
Net Cash flow from Financing activities (3.96) 83126 (566.17) 50.73
Net Cash Mow Generate during the Year (150.19) 114.58 (83.59) 105.21
Opening Balance of Cash/Cash Equivalent 184 54 69.96 153.55 48.34
Closing Balance of Cash/Cash Equivalent 34.35 184.54 69.96 153.55
Notes to Cash Flow Statement: For the nine months For the year ended For the vear ended For the year ended
Component of cash and cash equivalents period ended December March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
31,2024
Cash on hand 010 096 0.34 0.13
Balances with banks
In current accounts 34.25 183.58 69.62 153.42
34.35 184.54 69.96 153.55

The above Restated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the Annexure V-

Restated Financial Information and Annexure VI -Statement of Adj

For AGARWAL AJAY & A
Chartered Accountants

AJAY KR AG
PARTNER
M.No. 073934
PLACE: MUZAFFARNAGAR
DATED: 14.06.2025

UDIN : 25073934BMOORR2084

Whole Time Director
DIN-00140469

Place ' Muzaffarnagar
Date : 14.06%025 e
SANJEEV JAIN
Chief Finance Officer
PAN-AAAPII067G
Place  Muzaffarmagar
Date 14 06,2025

Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting Policies and Notes 1o the

nts to the Audited Financial Statements .
For angd on behalf of the Board of Directors of

M/s SILLVERTON INDUSTRIES LIMITED

TJAIN

hole Time Director

DIN-00141162

X

i

VIKANT

Company Secretary

ACS No. 48526
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M/s Sillverton Industries Limited

(Formerly Known as M/s Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)

CIN-U21093UP1995PLCO18048
Notes Forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
(Amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 25: Revenue From Operations

Particulars

For the nine
months period

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024
Sale of Goods 7.451.56 8,795.85 8,659.98 6,186.54
Total 7,451.56 8,795.85 8,659.98 6,186.54

Note 26: Other Income

Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year
months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024
Interest Income from bank 69.36 76.60 44,89 947
Keymen Insurance Policy Matured 1388 1.98
Rodtep Incentive - 1.73 -
Duty Drawback on Export Sales 1.01 0.03 3.56 11.78
Income on Sale of EPCG Licerse 2.89
Profit on Sale of Investment in shares 031 - -
Incentive on THC Import 2.4 3.26
Marnine Insurance Claim Received 226
Profit on Sale of Property, Plart & Equipment - 095
Profit Due to Foreign Exchangs Fluctuation 12.28
Total 72.94 105.03 69.26 21,28

Note 27: Cost of material Consumed

Particulars

For the nine

For the year

For the year

For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024

Raw Matenal (refer note 27.1) 3,581.02 4,338.16 4,290.03 3,208.17
Chemicals (refer note 27.2) 787.44 891.57 92990 610.41
Fuels (refer note 27.3) 724.30 1,017.40 1,012.97 888 48
Stores & Spares (refer note 27.4) 173.86 107.75 159.12 108.28
Packing Material (refer note 27.5) 89.04 98 35 104.32 8583
Total 5,355.66 6,453.23 6,496.34 4,901.17

Raw Material : 27.1

Particulars

For the nine
months period

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022
31, 2024

Opening Stock 875.32 52053 56822 44218
Add : Purchase 3,498.33 4,692.95 426814 3371.89
4,373.65 5213.48 4,836.36 3,814.07

Less © Insurance Claim Receivable - . 2580 37.68
Less : Closing Stock 792.63 875.32 520.53 568.22
Total 3,581.02 4,338.16 4,290.03 3,208.17

Chemicals : 27.2

Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024

Opening Stock 10.75 3392 3588 2901
Add : Purchase 780 .94 898 .40 927 94 61728
821.69 932.32 963.82 646,29
Less | Closing Stock 34.25 40.75 3392 3588
Total T87.44 891.57 929,90 610.41




JIN-U2109,

Amounts in IN illi n erwise stated)
Fuels: 27.3

Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024

Opening Stock 30.63 89.86 53.31 51.55
Add : Purchase 793.12 958.17 1,049.52 890.24
823,75 1,048.03 1,102.83 941.79
Less : Closing Stock 99.45 30.63 89.86 5331
Total 724.30 1,017.40 1,012.97 888,48




M/s Sillverton Industries Limited

{Formerly Known as M/s Silverten Pulp and Papers Private Limited)

CIN-U21093UP1995PLCO18048

Notes Forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
(Amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Store & Spares: 27.4

Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024

Opening Stock 108.01 63.55 55.03 35.51
Add : Purchase 162.34 152.21 167.64 127.80
270.35 215.76 222.67 163.31
Less : Closing Stock 96.49 108.01 63.55 55.03
Total 173.86 107.75 159.12 108.28

Packing Material: 27.5

Particulars

For the nine

For the year

For the year

For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022

31, 2024

Opening Stock 17.30 13.08 20.67 12.46
Add : Purchase 89.89 102.57 96.73 94.04
107.19 115.65 117.40 106.50
Less : Closing Stock 18.15 17.30 13.08 2067
Total 89.04 98.35 104.32 85.83

Note 28: Purchase Of Traded Goods

Particulars

For the nine
months period

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024
Opening Stock 0.26 -
Add : Purchase 90.55 108.55 89.01 247
Less : Closing Stock 477 0.26
Total 86.04 108.29 89.01 2.47

Note 29: Changes in Inventory of Finished goods, Work i

n Progress & Stock-in-Trade

Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024

Stock at the end of the Year
Finished Goods 112.85 82.05 100.52 58.33
Work-in-Progress 20.64 16.81 40.84 18.07
TOTAL(A) 133,49 98.86 141.36 76.40
Less: Stock at the Beginning of the year
NFlmshed Goods 82.05 100.52 5833 51.06
Work-in-Progress 16.81 40.84 18.07 14.79
TOTAL(B) 98 .86 141.36 76.40 65 85
TOTAL (B-A) (34.63) 42.50 (64.96) (10.55)

Note 30: Employee Benefit expenses

Particulars

For the nine
months period

For the vear
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022

Salaries & Wages 98 85 110.88 72.11
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 6.26 791 707
Bonus 3160 494 399
Director Remuneration 20.70 27.60 12.00
Staff Welfare 01 0.19 3.65
Workmen Compensation 0.31 1.51 0.74
Gratuity 548 7.50 722
Leave Encashment Expenses 0.13 0.40

Total 138.34 160,93 106,78




MUs Sillverton Industries Limited

(Formerly Known as M/s Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)

CIN-U21093UP1995PLCO18048
Notes Forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
{Amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

[Note 31: Finance Costs

Farli:ulm For the nine For the year For the year For the year
months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024
Interest on Term loan 48.48 19.82 a7 19.24
Less: Interest cost capitalised in CWIP (41.21) (19.82) (3.47) -
Interest Cost Charged to Profit end loss 7.27 - - 19.24
Interest on Vehicle Loan 444 307 142 1.75
Interest on Working Capital 23.55 26.81 23.05 £.03
Interest to others 25.73 1881 40,41 42,35
Interest on compound financial instrument 0.92 113 1.04 0.96
Bank Charges 6.60 9.59 10.25 10.57
Total 68.51 79.41 76.17 §2.90
Note 32: Other Expenses
Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year
months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024
Manufacturing Expenses (refer note 32.1) 356.63 40138 303.57 237.88
Repair & Maintenance to Others 265 339 1.06 1.48
Testing Expenses 0.29 0.29 0.32 020
Printing & Stationery 023 0.59 028 053
Postage & Telegram Charges 0.59 0.63 051 058
Telephone Expenses 0.16 037 026 0.19
Rent 028 0.99 0.83 0.70
Rates & Taxes 2.58 112 816 1.08
Insurance Expenses 532 6.64 496 3102
Loss Due to Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 11.97 3504 0.37
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 099 0.34 0.46 1.08
Interest on Taxes - . 0.10
Legal & Professional Charges 6.55 7.05 2.62 284
Charnity & Donation 067 0.55 0.44 046
l'ravelling & Conveyance 6.68 9.16 4.75 1.49
Office Expenses 2.00
Elite Insurance - - 1.50
Tender Expenses 0.17 234 1.83
Auditor Remuneration :
-For Statutory Audit Fees 037 0.50 0.50 0.50
-For Internal Audit Fees 0.07 0.10 0.10 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 238 203 1.64 -
Security Arrangement Charges 489 5.73 4.03 3182
Business Promotion Expenses 200 6.63 i 421
Employee Education Expenses - » 1.57
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 041 - - 1.82
Commission on sale 89.30 260.52 275.82 65.09
CSR Expenses 13.13 12.52 896 294
Export Service Charges 0.14 0.99 53.21 8325
Rebate & Discount and Miscellaneous Balance w/off 027 033 0.04 0.01
Freight Outward 85.16 106.22 104.03 68.10
Total 593.88 830.41 816.63 486.81




Ms Sillverton Industries Limited

(Formerly Known as M/s Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)

CIN-U21093UP1995PLCO18048
Notes Forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
{Amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32.1 : Manufacturing Expenses

Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year
months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31, 2024
Direct Expenses :
Power Charges 28.17 32,15 51.74 12.11
Wages 170.44 181.25 136.54 117.03
Plant Operation Expenses (Chemical) 8245 10774 76.62 40.94
Cutting & Packing Charges 10.82 16.08 11.83 4919
Loading & Unloading Expenses 30.87 24.77 11.28 -
Repair & Maintenance to P&M 3388 39.39 15.56 18.61
Total 356.63 401.38 303.57 137.88

Note 33: Tax Expense

Particulars

For the nine

For the year

For the year

For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024
(i) Profit and Loss
Current tax:
Current Tax 272.33 181.66 291.28 98.05
MAT Credit Entitlement taken/(Utilised) - 89.51 -
Deferred Tax:
Deferred Tax Expenses/Benefit 77.58 (104.97) 66.33 88.11
Total 349.91 166.20 357.61 186.16
ii) Other C rehensive Income/(loss)
Deferred tax on re-measurements of defined benefits plan 0.33 0.54 1.31 1.01
Total 0.33 0.54 1.31 1.01

Note 34: Earning per share

Particulars

For the nine
months period

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022
31, 2024

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 82440 88620 68198 304.27
attributable 1o Equity Shareholders (A)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as 245 454 368 245454 368 245,454 368 245 454 368
denominator for calculating Besic EPS (B)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as 245,454,368 245,454,368 245,454,368 245,454,368
denominator for calculating Dilutive EPS (C)
Basic Earnings per share (A/B) 336 361 278 1.24
Diluted Earnings per share (A'C) 3.36 iel 278 1.24
Face Value per equity share 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

Pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 27, 2025 and by the Shareholders of the Company at their Extra-Ordinary
General Meeting held on the same date, the Company allotied bonus equity shares on May 29, 2025, in the ratio of 151 (i.e., 15 equity shares of face value
210 each for every 1 equity share of face value 210 each held by the existing equity shareholders of the Company), by capitalizing reserves and surplus from

the secunities premium account and free reserves

Subsequently, pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on May 29, 2025 and a resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company on
June 3, 2025, the face value of the equity shares of the Company was sub-divided from 210 each to 25 each. Accordingly, each equity share of face value 210

was splhit into two equity shares o7 face value 25 each
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Note 35: CSR Expenditure

Particulars

For the nine
months period

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

For the year
ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022
31, 2024
Amount require to be spent by the company during the year 17.28 12.58 842 6.00
Amount of expenditure incurred 13.13 12.52 8.96 294
Total of previous years surplus/(shortfall) 0.05 0.11 (0.43) 263
Surplus/ (Shortfall) at the end of the year/penod (4.10) 0.05 0.11 (0.43)
Reason for shortfall NA NA NA Refer Note-35.1

Note 35.1 :

During the year ended March 31 2022, the Company was required to spend Rs. 6.00 million towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

However, the Company spent Rs. 5.57 million, resulting in a shortfall of Rs, 0.43 million. The shortfall was due to the ongoing id

fication and eval

ion of

suitable CSR projects. The Company remains commilted to meeting its CSR obligations and ensuring effective deployment of funds towards impactful

mitiatives.

Nature of CSR activities:

During the year up to 31 December’ 2024 the company has incurred Rs. 13.13 million (March 31, 2024 : Rs. 12.52 million,March 31, 2023: Rs. 8.96 million,
March 31, 2022 Rs. 2.94 million) towards CSR expenditure, the same has been incurred for promoting education, including special education and employment
enhancing vocation skills especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects

Note 36.1 : Value of Imports calculated on C.LF. basis in respect of Raw Material

Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,

ended December 2024 2023 2022
31, 2024

Ram Material on C.L.F, basis 2,030.21 3.101.07 257224 1,723.74
Imported and Indigenous Kaw Material Consumed :
Imported 2,030.21 3,101.07 2,572.24 1,723.74
Indigenous 1,550.81 1.237.09 1,717.79 1,484.43
Imported and Indigenous (hemicals, Stores and
Packing Material Consumed :

Imported - - - -
Indigenous 1,050.34 1,097.67 1,193.34 804.52
|Note 36.2 : Income/Expenditure in foreign currency B
Particulars For the nine For the year For the year For the year

months period | ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,
ended December 2024 2023 2022
31,2024
A. Expenditure in foreign currency :
- Purchase 2,164.51 2.921.22 2,154.91 1,497.03
- Interest to bank in foreign currency 15.52 - - -
2,180.03 2,921.22 2,154.91 1,497.03
B. Income in foreign currency :
Exports 177 .87 233.29 460.40 811.28
177.87 233.29 460.40 811.28
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|Note 37: Financial instruments-fair values and accounting classification |

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy to the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company :-

As at 31, December 2024] As at 31, March 2024 | As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Financial Assets Carrying  Fair Value | Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Value| Carrying Fair Value
Value Value Value Value Value

Amortised cost
Financial Assets- non current

Investments 16.06 16.06 17.15 17.15 . - - -
Other financial assets 3.11 3 305 3.05 3.05 3.05 7.7 T
Financial Assets- current

Trade receivables 1,133.90 1,133.90 692 46 692.46 776.49 776.49 64503 645.03
Cash and cash equivalents 3435 3435 184,54 184 54 69.96 69.96 153.55 153.55
Bank balance other than cash and cesh equivalents 1,168 89 1,168.89 1,178.14  1,178.14 826.25 826.25 381.06 381.06
Other financial assels 24 44 2444 7.83 7.83 1.68 1.68 2.06 2.06
Total 2,380.75 2,380.75 2,083.17 2,083.17 | 1,677.43 1,677.43 | 1,189.41 1,189.41

Financial Liabilities

Amortised cost
Borrowings-non current
Borrowings 1,699.31 1,6099.31 1,391.54  1,391.54 529.64 52964 393.73 393.73
Other financial liabilities 55.81 5581 51.25 51.25 50.82 50.82 49.76 49.76
Borrowings-current
Borrowings 23932 239.32 470.57 470.57 43409 43409 | 1,02495 1,024.95
Trade payables 598.72 598.72 679.94 679.94 709.49 709.49 423.39 42339
Other financial liabilities- current 38.50 38.50 0.09 0.09 15.34 1534 0.06 0.06
Total 2,631.66 2,631.66 2,593.39 2,593.39 ] 1,739.38 1,739.38 | 1,891.89 1,891.89

Financial Instruments-Fair value hierarchy

The company categorizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value into one of three level depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in
their measurement which are described as follows:

1) Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

i) Level 2 Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within level | for the financial asset or financial
lhahilities.

i) Level 3 Inputs are unobservable input for the assets or lability reflecting the significant modifications to observable related market data or Company's assumptions
about pricing by market participants

Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities
have fair value that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-term nature.

There are no transfer between Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 during the year ended/period December 31,2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31,2022

Financial risk factors

The company's activities expose it ‘0 a vanety of financial risks, market nsk (including currency risks, interest rate risks and price nisk), credit risk and liquidity risk
This note presents information about the company’s exposure to cach of the said risks, the company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring risks and the
company’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The board of director has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk management framework. The company's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the company to set appropriate measures and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits
Risks management policies and sysiems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and in the company's activities.

The company'’s exposure 1o the vanous types of nsks associated to its activity and financial instruments is detailed below

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk that countzrparty will not meet its obliganon under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risx of default and the nsk of detenoration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk 1s controlled by analysing
credit limits and creditworthiness of a customer on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial
instrument that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets
None of the financial instrument of the Company result in matenal concentration of credit risk
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The approach of the company to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that these will have sufficient liquidity 10 meet their respective
ligbilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage to their reputation.

The table below summarises the meturity profile of financial hiabilities of company based on contractual undiscounted payments:
As at December 31, 2024

Particulars On demand w;::':' 1 1toSyears| >S5years Total
Borrowings Non-current - - - -
Other financial liabilities (non current) - - - 55.81 55.81
Borrowings Current 22541 13.91 - - 23932
Trade payables - 598.72 - -l 59872
Other financial liabilities (current) - 3850 5 & 3850
“As at March 31, 2024
Within 1

Particulars On demand yoar 1toSyears| >5years Total
Borrowings Non-current - - - -
Other financial liabilities (non current) L - - 51.25 51.25
Borrowings Current 454 81 15.76 - -l 47057
Trade payables - 679,94 - -l 67994
Other financial liabilines (current) - 0.09 - - 0.09
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars On demand W;::x: : 1toSyears| >5years Total
Borrowings Non-current - - - g
Other financial liabilities (non current) - - 50.82 50.82
Borrowings Current 428 49 5.60 - -l 434.09
Trade payables - 709.49 - -l 709.49
Other financial liabilities (current) - 15.34 - - 15.34
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars On demand w:::: A 1toSyears| >5vyears Total
Borrowings Non-current - : . E =
Other financial liabilities (non cur-ent) - - 49.76 49.76
Borrowings Current 1.01741 7.54 % -l 1,02495
Trade payables . 423.39 - -l 42339
Other financial habilities (current) - 0.06 - = 0.06

Market Risk

Market nisk is the risk that the Company’s assets and habilities will be exposed to due to a change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that
determine the valuation of these financial instruments. Financial instruments affected by market risk include receivables, payables, loans and borrowings.

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company operates in India only. The company has taken loans in foreign currency and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, including those related to import and export activities. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, import and export of goods and
services, and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of
highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions..
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Amounts in EURO Million

As at As at s al Asat |
December | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
Particulars 31,2024 2024 2023 2022
EURO EURO EURO EURO
Borrowings:
Term loan from bank (FCNR) 12.57 11,30 2.07 -
Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments and the impact on other
components of equity arises from foreign forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges.

lFa rticulars Im on Profit after Tax
[ At | ear Year Year

December Ended Ended Ended
31,2024 | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,

EURO Sensitivity

INR/EURO -Increase by .5% (5.44) (5.10) (0.85) -
|INR/EURO -Decrease by 5% 5.44 5.10 0.85 -

Note 39: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (1o the extent not provided for)

Xsat | Asal As al XS at
December | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
Particulars 31,2024 2024 2013 1022

(u) Contingent Liabilities - % % i
i. Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt

-Income Tax Demand (1) 2363 - - -
-Goods and Service Tax (2) 6.73 - = =
“Others (3) 16.33 16.33 1633 -
ii. Guarantees excluding financizl guarantees

-Letter of Credit Issued - . - =
-Bank Guarantee Issued 138.84 53.84 4241 36.74

liii. Other Money for which the company is contingently liable - - - -

() Commitment

|E stimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 700.00 | 1,500.00 B -

(1) A demand of #23.63 million has been reflected under the Income Tax portal for Assessment Year 2023-24, The said demand appears to have arisen on account of the following:
(A) Incorrect Head of Tax Payment:

An amount of 215,00 million was deposited by the Company towards advance tax; however, due to an inadvertent error, the pay was made under an incorrect head, leading to non-
adjustment against the relevant income tax liability, which will be rectify,
{B) Purchase of Land Below Circle Rate::

The Company had purchased a piece of agriculture land during the year 2022-2023 at a value lower than the applicable circle rate relevant income tax liability.

As on date, the company has ived a d d intimation from the income tax department. The Company has already filied a rectification application U/s 154 of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 for correction of the challan and justification of the property transaction, which is still pending with the Income Tax Authorities. The Company 15 hopeful that the dec

will be in its favour. However, considering the matter is yet to be adjud d, the d d has been disclosed as a liability, as the final outcome 15 uncertain

(2) The Company has received a Show Cause Notice (SCN) amounting to 2 8.57 millions from the Goods and Services Tax (GST) Department in connection with
proceedings initiated under a Special Investigation Branch (SIB) audit. Against the said demand, the Company has deposited 2 1.84 millions. The remaining balance of
26.73 Millions (i.e, 2 8.57 millions less 2 1.84 lakhs) has been disclosed as a contingent liability, as the matter is currently under dispute and pending adjudication. The
Companv. based on legal advice and internal evaluation. believes it has a strong case on merits and expects a favorable outcome

(3) Pursuant 1o directions issued by the Honble NGT in these matters, the Uttar Pradesh Pollution Control Board (“UPPCB™) was instructed to initiate action against
the industnies of aera near to factory premies, including our Company. In compliance with such directions, the UPPCB, vide its letter dated February 8, 2023, imposed
an environmental compensation of 20.77 million on the Company for alleged non-scientific disposal of fly ash. This amount was deposited under protest, with an
express statement that such deposit shall not be construed as an admission of guilt or acknowledgment that the ash onginated from the Company's operations
Subsequently, a show cause notice dated February 11, 2023, was issued by the UPPCB, proposing an increase in the environmental compensation to 216.33 million
The Company submitted a comprehensive reply dated March 3, 2023, contesting the basis of the proposed penalty and requesting an opportunity for a personal heanng
The Company also submitted that it has entered into a contract with a cement manufacturer for the regular sale of all fly ash generated, which is transported in sealed,
packed containers in accordance with applicable norms. Accordingly, the Company has asserted that it has complied with all relevant disposal regulations

Since then, the Company has not received any further communication from the UPPCB, and the matter remains pending. In view of the ongoing adjudication and the
Company's documented compliance with disposal norms, the matter has been disclosed as a contingent liability.
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ﬁolc 40: Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 |

Information as required to be fumnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year/period ended
December 31,2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company,

Particulars As at As at As at As at
December | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
31,2024 2024 2023 2022

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the 11.37 477 579 0.83

end of each accounting year,

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises| - -
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the]
appointed day during each accounting year, & 5

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but - -
bevond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

(e)the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when lhe} - - - -
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
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[Note a1: Related Party Disclosure |

The names of the related parties where control exists and/or with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and certified by the
management are as below

(i) Key management personnel (KMP)

Rajeev Jain ( Director)

Rajesh Jain (Director)

Akshay Jain (Whole Time Director)

Sanjeev Jain (Chief Finance Officer)

Ravikant (Company Secretary)

(ii) Related parties who have control/significant influence over the Company:
Arun Kumar Jain Rajesh Kumar Jain (HUF)
Anubha Jain Divya Jain

Neena Jain Samyak Jain

Rishabh Jain Vibha Jain

Sanath Jain Snidevi Jain

Monica Jain Sanskriti Jain

(iii) Enterprises in which Directors / Relative of Directors has substantial interest

Garg Duplex and Papers Mills Private Limited
Shree Rama Newsprint Limited

Shreesanmati Autoexperts Private Limited
Accurate Multilayer Papers LLP

Summary of Related Party Transactions

Details of related party transactions carried out during the Period / Year

Amount Paid against unsecured loans [Rajesh Kumar Jain (HUF) ] 2 88
Anubha Jain 23 30 -
i Jain - 283
. Sanath Jain - 2.68] -
Interest paid on unsecured loans Anubha Jain 1.78 nqﬁ 2.12]
F@ﬂmmm - 0.29 028
Rishabh Jain | 0.28 0.28]
| Sanath Jain B 027 026
Purchase Accurate Multilayer Papers LLP 18.75 1.07 766
Garg Duplex and Papers Mills Private Limited - 17.67 47.03
Shree Rama Newsprint Limited 0.70 . 189 41
Purchase of Capital Goods Shrecsanmati Autoexperts Private Limited 1.26 - - -
Shroe Rama Newsprint Limited - 14 34 E B
Sales of Finished Goods Accurate Multilayer Papers LLP 28.50 16,01 50 00 116.32
Shreesanmati Autoexperts Private Limited 0.04) 0.09] 0.06 002
Garg Duplex and Papers Mills Private Limited 646 . 1294 .
[Shree Rama Newsprint Limited 128 2 : 1.70
| Managerial remuneration meu}n 18.00 24.00 12.00 12.00
Rajeev Jain 2.70 3 60 - -
Sanjecv Jain 4.50/ 330 B
Ravikant 0.10] - -
Salary Anubha Jain 225 22§ 2.00 275
Arun Kumar Jain 4.50] 2 50 -
Neena Jain 2.70] 3.60 3.60
|Rishabh Jain 2.70 3 60 3.60
|Samyak Jain 9.00] 12,00 9.90
| Sanskriti Jain 4.30] 3.00] 3.00
Sridevi Jain 2.70] 3,60 270
Monica Jain 2.70] 3 60] 5
Divya Jain 270 3 60 -
Vibha Jain 2.70{ 2.70) B
Lesse Rent Garg Duplex and Papers Mills Private Limited 26.40] 4275 N
Akshay Jain - 0 40 040
Vibha Jain - 0 30 0.30

All transactions with related parties during the reporting period have been conducted at arm’s length prices and in the ordinary course of business. These transactions

were based on comparable market terms and were duly approved by the appropriate governance structures of the Company, in compliance with applicable accounting
standards and regulatory requirements.
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I Note 42: Segment Reporting I

The Company has identified Manufacturing and Sale of Paper Products—including kraft paper, kraft board, writing paper, cup stock, etc—as its sole reportable
operating segment, in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

There are no other reportable segments within the Company's operations. Accordingly, the following disclosures in respect of segment revenue, segment results, total
carrying amount of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment Liabilities, and the total cost incurred to acquire segment assets during the year are all as presented
in the Restated Financial Information for the year/period ended December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022,

All the manufacturing plants of the Company are located at a single geographical location. Consequently, there is no reportable secondary segment in terms of
geographical segmentation. All revenues, assets, and liabilities are attributable 1o operations within the same geographical area.

The Company continues to evaluate its operating structure and will disclose additional segments if and when they become reportable in accordance with applicable
standards.

|Note 43: Capital management |

(a) Risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide return for
sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of the followings gearing ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet, including non-controlling interests)

The company’s gearing ratio were as follows

Particular
As at As at As at As at
December | March 31, |March 31,] March 31,
31,2024 2024 2023 2022
Net debt 1,904 1,678 894 1,265
Total equity 4139 3314 2426 1,742
Net debt to equity ratio 0.46 0.51 0.37 0.73}

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company’s capital management amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest bearing loans and borrowing that define capital structure requirement. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call
loans and borrowings.
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Euu-l-l:i‘“_ Benefi

i

a) Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund 15 a defined contribution scheme The contnb

dent fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the

contributions are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear (Refer Note- )

[Particulars For the nine months | For the year ended | For the year ended For the year
period ended December March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 | ended March 31,
31,2024 2022
Contribution to provident and other fund 6,26 791 707 712
Total 6.26 7.91 7.07 712

b) Defined benefit plan

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuanal valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each reporting period. The plan is not

funded by the Group. Such liability is included in salaries, wages and bonus

i Amount charged to the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars For the nine months | For the year ended | For the year ended |  For the year
period ended December |  March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 | ended March 31,
31,2024 2022
Current Service cost 495 728 504 475
Interest cost on benefit obligation 090 120 1.08 085
Total 5.85 8,48 6.12 5.60
ii. Reconciliation of opening and closing bal of defined benefit obligation:
|Particulars For the nine months | For the year ended | For the year ended |  For the year
period ended December | March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 | ended March 31,
31,2024 2022
Defined benefit obligation at beginming of year 2376 16 89 1460 12.56
(Current service cost 495 728 504 475
Interest cost 0.90 1.20 108 085
Benefits paid - (0.07) (0.07) (0.67)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (0.95) (1.54) (3 76) 289)
|Defined benefit oblig: at end of year 18.66 13.76 16.89 14.60
iii. Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income :
had The nine monihs | For the year ended | For the vear ended For the year
period ended December | nparch 31,2024 | March 31,2023 | ended March 31,
Particulars 31, 2024 2022
Actuarial gain/{loss) 0.95 1.54 376 289
iv. The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation are as follows:-
For the nine monihs 7
R For the year ended | For the year ended |  For the year
period ended December |  nyurch 31, 2024 March 31,2023 | ended March 31,
Particulars 31,2024 w12
Discount rate 7.05%| 7.10%%| 7.40%) 680%
Expected rate of increase i compensation levels 7.00%| 7 00%) 7.00%| 7.00%|
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 2625 26.01 2634 2641

v. The discount rate 1s based on the averaze yield on government bonds at the reporuing date with a term that matches that of the hiabilities

vi_ The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuanal valuahon, take account of inflation, senionity, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and

demand m the employment market

[Note 45: First time Ind AS adoption reconciliation

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has followed the same accounting policy choices (both mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed as per Ind AS 101) as initially adopted on transition date. An

A E ions and Excey availed
A.L Ind AS optional exemptions
A.LL Deemed Cost

Ind AS 101 permuts a first-time adopter 1> elect to continue with carmyng value for all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill as recognised in the Financial

Statements as at the date of transiton 10 Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of tra Ac

all of nis property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets other than goodwill at thewr previous GAAP carrying value

dingly, the Comg

y has elected to measure
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A.1.2. Business Combination

As per Ind AS 101, a first-time adopter may elect not to apply Ind AS 103 p ly to past b b (E t that d before the date of transition o Ind
ASs). Accordingly, dowpmyhumladedwmmdhuduwdmmwly Ind AS 103 retrospectively.

A.LInd AS Mandatory exceptions

The Company has applied the following ption from full spective application of Ind AS datorly required under Ind AS 101

AL L Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs a the date of transition 10 Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments
1o reflect any difference in accounting po'icies), unless there s objective evidence that those estimates were in error. Ind AS estimates as at Apnl 01, 2021 are consistent with the estimates as at the
same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Comg made of img loss of fi 1al assets based on expected credit loss model in accordance with Ind AS at the date
of ranmition as this was not required under previous GAAP

2.2, Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classifi and of fi mwhh&of“hﬂmhmnhhdmmwhluﬁ Further, the
dard permits of fi | assets d at d cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of i i Sp e appl 18 Imp ble. The
Company has di ined the classification of fi | assets in terms of whether they meet the amortised cost entena, FVTPL entena or FYTOC] enitenia based on the facts and circumstances

that exasted as on transition date.

A.2.3 De-recognition of financial assets and fnancial linbilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter ‘o apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or afler the transition date. However, Ind AS 101 allows a
first-time adopter 10 apply the de—reongnum requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the entity's choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial
assets and fi I habil d as & result of past transactions was obtained @ the tme of witally & for those The Comg has clected to apply the de-
recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 pmspu:mely from the transihon date

B. Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

The foll I provide the expl and quantifi of the diff ansing from the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101, First Time
a.bp!moflndtn.&mamnssmm

C. Notes to first time adoption

1 Remeasurements of post-employmert benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, ie | gains and losses, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
ncome instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these were forming part of the Profit or Loss for the year

Consequent to this change, transition impact has been given in the Restated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 (refer note B 2 above)

gnised in other p ve

2 Deferred tax

Under the previous GAAP, deferred tax 15 calculated using the h, which fe on difference between taxable profits and accounting profits for the year. Ind AS 12-
“Income tax”™ reg entities to for defi mmwmmmmrmm porary differ L the carrying of an asset or hability in the
balance sheet and its tax base Based on the Bal Sheet ap ferred tax have to be sgnised by the Company on IND AS adj which create temporary difference
between books and tax accounts.

3 Redeemable preference share

As per Ind AS 32, Redeemable Prefererce shares are classified as financial liability i a1 amortised cost and interest cost on the Redeemable preference shares has been charged to profit
and loss account. Under Previous GAAF, Redeemable preference shares were recognised under shareholder's fund . Ci ] to this change, transition impact has been given in the equity as at

Apnil 01, 2021, in the Restated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and December 31,2024




M/s Sikiverton Industries Limited
(Formerly Known as M/s Sitverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)
CIN-U21093UP1995PLC0O18048
Notes Forming part of Standalone Financial Stz tements

[Note 46: Financial Ratios
[Sr No | Particular Numerator Denominator As at As at March | Vardation | As at March Variation As at Variation
December 31,2024 During the 31,2023 During the year | March 31, | During the
31,2024 ' 2012
1 |Cusrent Rato Cur-ent Assets Current Liabiliies 320 252 26.70% 187 34 62% 1.36 37.36%
2 [Deb-Equity Ratio Total Borrowings _ Total Equity 047 056 -16.64% 040 114%% 08I -5123%
3| Detnt Service Coverage Rano Earnings available for debt 2022 1644 2299% 16 87 -258% 894 BE 79%
service (EBIDTA) Interest and repayment of debt
4|Return on Equity Ratio 022 031 -28 35% 033 -5.63% 019 3.11%
Net Profit afler Tax Average Sharcholders Equity
5|Inventory Turnover Ratio (Cost of Material Consumed | Average Inventory 447 620 -27 98% 776 -20.08% 443 75.10%
6| Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio Net Credit Sales Average Trade Recervable 816 11.98 -31 86% 1218 -1.71% 9.96 2235%
7|Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables 847 995 -14.88% 11.65 -14.58% 1272 -8.3%%
8| Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Working Capital 302 497 -39.32% 883 -43.70% 10.41 -15.18%
9|Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after Tax Revenue from operations 11.06% 10.08% 981% 7.87% 27 94% 4 88% 61.41%
10|Return on Capital Employed Earning before interest and tax | Average Capital Employed 0.22 026 -1641% 034 -2242% 0.19 75.18%




M/s Sillverton Industries Limited . .
(Formerly Known as M/s Silverton Pulp and Papers Private Limited)
CIN-U21093UP1995PLCO18048

Notes Forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

[ Note 47: Additional Regulatory Information 1

(i)

(i1)

(ii1)

(v)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made

thereunder.

The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956 during the year/period ended December 3 I, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 3 1, 2022,

There are no charges or satisfactions which were to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period during the
year/period ended December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31. 2023 and March 31, 2022,

The Company has not invested or traded in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year/period ended December 31, 2024, March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

The Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority during the
vear/period ended December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 3 1, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year/period ended December 31, 2024, March 3 1, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

As at year/period ended December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has used the borrowings from
banks and Financials Institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken,

(viii) During the year/period ended December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has not granted loans or

(1x)

(x)

(xi)

(i)

advances in nature of loans, repayable on demand or without specifying any terms for period of repayment, to promoters/directors/KMPs/Related
parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013)

During the year/period ended December 31, 2024. March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts in the course of tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such
as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

During the year/period ended December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has not advanced or
loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or kind of funds) to any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

During the year/period ended December 3 1. 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has not received any fund
from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shall:

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has made investments during the periods ended December 31, 2024 Rs. 15.75 Millions, ( March 31, 2024 Rs. 17.15 Millions),
(March 31, 2023 Rs. NIL) and (March 31. 2022 Rs NIL); however, these investments are not in the nature of layering of companies. Accordingly,
the provisions relating to the restriction on the number of layers of companies under Clause 87 of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017, are not applicable.”

The Company has filed quarterly statements with banks in respect of borrowings from banks on the security of current assets. The said statements
were in agreement with the unaudited books of account during the year/period ended December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022.

(xii1) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India during the current year

and previous year




